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The following is a company announcement issued by Luxury Living Finance plc (the “Company”)
pursuant to rule 4.11.13 of the Prospects Rules

QUOTE
The Board of Directors of the Company, on the 30 October 2019:

i. approved the Company’s Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 30 June
2019; and

ii. resolved that no final dividend be recommended to the Company’s Annual General
meeting.

Upon the conclusion of the meeting of the Board of Directors, the Annual General Meeting of the
Company was held at which:

a. the audited consolidated Financial Statements, the Auditors’ Report and the Directors’ Report
for the financial year ended 30 June 2019 were approved;

b. Louis Padovani was reappointed as the Company’s auditors and the Board of Directors was
authorised to fix his remuneration;

¢. the current directors were reappointed up to the next Annual General Meeting in accordance
with the Company’s Articles of Association; and

d. The shareholders took note of the Board of Directors’ resolution that no dividend be declared.

The above mentioned reports and financial statements are available as part of this announcement and
on https://www.llt-finance.com/

The Board of Directors of Luxury Living Technologies Limited - the guarantor of the €8,000,000 5%
Secured Bonds 2028 issued by the Company in terms of the Company Admission Document dated 3
July 2018 (the “Guarantor”) on the 30 October 2019:

i. approved the Company’s Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 30 June
2019; and

ii. resolved that no final dividend be recommended to the Company’s Annual General
meeting.

Upon the conclusion of the meeting of the Board of Directors, the Annual General Meeting of the
Company was held at which:

a. the audited consolidated Financial Statements, the Auditors’ Report and the Directors’ Report
for the financial year ended 30 June 2019 were approved;

b. Louis Padovani was reappointed as the Company’s auditors and the Board of Directors was
authorised to fix his remuneration;



the current directors were reappointed up to the next Annual General Meeting in accordance

¢
with the Company’s Articles of Association; and
d. The shareholders took note of the Board of Directors’ resolution that no dividend be declared.

The above mentioned reports and financial statements are available as part of this announcement and

on https://www.llt-finance.com/
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Company Secretary
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The directors present their report together with the audited financial statements of the Company for the fourteen
months ended 30 June 2019.

Principal Activities

The Company’s principal ac(ivity is Lo carry on the business of a finance company, principally by advancing capital
raised to its parent company, when and as required.

The Company is essenlially a special purpose vehicle set up for financing transactions of Luxury Living
Technologies Limited. It raised such finance through an issue of bonds which is quoted on Prospects MTT and
guaranteed by Luxury Living Technologies Limited, to whom proceeds from its issue has been advanced.

Performance Review

The Company was incorporated on 25 April 2018. Consequently, these financial statements have been prepared for
the fourteen-month period, from date of incorporation to 30 June 2019,

During the period under review, the Company generated finance income amounting €379,346 from loan advanced to
parent company as well as €45,000 from a management recharge o the parent company. Interest expense on bonds
amounted to €366,667. The Company’s profit before laxation amounted to €14,866, After accounting for taxation,
the profit for the period amounted to €9,663.

The directors expect the present level of activity to be sustained in the foreseeable future.

Position Review

The Company’s asset base amounted to €8,378,955 as at 30 June 2019,

Non-current assets relate to loan receivable from parent company amounting to €7,918,521.

The Company’s main liabilities are made up of an €8,000,000 5% Secured Bonds redeemable in 2028.

Dividends and Reserves

The retained earnings of the Company at the end of the fourteen month period amounted to €9,663. The directors do
not reconumend the distribution of a dividend and propose to transfer the profit for the year to reserves.

Financial Risk Management

The Company’s activities expose it o a variety of financial risks, including credit risk and liquidity risk. These are
further analysed on Note 17 to these financial statements.

Events Subseguent to the Statement of Financial Position Date

There are no particular important events affecting the Company which occurred since the end of the accounting
period.

Tuture Developments

The directors intend to continue to operate in line with the current business plan.
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Directors
The following have served as directors of the Company during the year under review:

Dr Joseph Borg Bartolo (Non-Executive and Chairmar)
Mr Jean Paul Busuttil (Executive)
Mr William Wait (Non-Executive)

The Board meets on a regular basis to discuss performance, position and other matters.
Disclosure of information to the auditor

As at the date of making this report, the directors confirm the following:
o As far as each director is aware, there is no relevant information needed by the independent auditor in
connection with preparing the audit report of which the independent auditor is unaware; and
o Each director has taken all steps that he ought to have taken as a director in order to make himself aware of
any relevant information needed by the independent auditor in coninection with preparing the audit report
and to establish that the independent anditor is aware of that information.

Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

The Maltese Companies Act, (Cap 386) requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial
period which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial period and of
the profit or loss of the Company for that period.

in preparing the financial statements, the directors are required to:-

« adopt the going concern basis, unless it is inappropriate to presume that the company will continue in
business as going concern;

s select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently;

« make judgment and estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances;

e account for income and charges relating to the accounting period on the accruals basis;

s value separately the components of asset and liability items; and

o ensure that financial statements have been drawn up in accordance with International Financial Reporting as
adopted by the EU;

The directors ave also responsible for designing, implementing, and maintaining internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to cnable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and that they comply with the Maltese Companies Act (Cap 386).

The directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence taking reasonable steps for
the provention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The financial statements of Luxury Living Finance p.l.c. for the fourteen month period ended 30 June 2019 are
included in the Annual Report 2019, which is published in hard-copy printed form and will be made available on the
Company’s website, The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the Annual Report on the
website in view of their responsibility for the control over, and the security of the website. Access to information
published on the Company’s websile is available in other counties and jurisdiclions, where legislation governing the
preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from requirements or practice in Malta.

Auditor

The auditor, Louis Padovani, has expressed his willingness to remain in office and a resolution proposing his
reappointment will be put before the members at the annual general meeting.
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Going concern statement pursuant to Prospects MTF Rule 4.11.12

After making enquiries and taking into consideration future plans as explained in Note 2, the directors have a
reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate resources to continue in operating existence in the
foreseeable future, For this reason, the directors continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparation financial
statements.

Principal risks and uncertainties associated with the Company

The Company’s main objective is that of a finance company. Given that the Company does not carry out any trading
activities, it is economically dependent on the business prospects of Luxury Living Technologies Limited (‘the
parent’). As a result, the Company is dependent on the receipt of income from its parent in relation to Bond proceeds
which it has advanced in the form of a loan. Consequently, the operations of the parent would directly affect the
performance and position of the Company.

The parent is a company principally operating in eco and renewable energy solutions specialising in installations of
photovoltaic units in a variety of domestic, industrial and agricultural locations, with a view of operating a boutique
hotel in the first quarter of 2020, Although Luxury Living Technologies Limited registered a loss of €277,274 before
tax for the year ended 30 June 2019, this was mainly attributable Lo logistical issues arising from photovoltaic farms
installed but not connected by 30 June 2019, as well recent events in the construction industry which resulted in
delays in the development of the St. Julian’s boutique hotel, which adversely affected revenue. Luxury Living
Technologies Limited intends to continue installing and connecting photovoltaic farms during the next financial year
and commence operating the St. Julian’s boutique hotel in order to achieve positive and sustainable financial results
going forward. The directors monitor closely the impact of events and the ability of the parent to honour its financial
commitments, To this regard, the directors are of the view that the amount receivable from the parent by the
Company is recoverable.

A detailed review of ihe risk management policies adopted by the Company is included in Note 17 to these financial
statements.

Share Capital Structure

The Company’s authorised and issued share capital is €50,000 divided into 50,000 Ordinary Shares of €1 each.
The share capital consists of 49,999 Ordinary ‘A’ Shares and 1 Ordinary Share ‘B. Ordinary ‘A’ Shares grant one
voling right for every share held and are participating shares entitled received dividend distribution. Ordinary ‘B’
shares have no voting rights expect for the purpose of participating in the appointiment or election of directors.
Ordinary ‘B’ share are not entitled to receive any divided distributions.

Holding in excess of 5% Share Capital

On the basis of information available to the Company, as at 30 June 2019, Luxury Living Technologies Limited held
49,999 shaves in the Company which is equivalent to 99.999% shares of its total issued share capital.

There are no arrangements in place as at 30 June 2019, the operation of which may at a subsequent date in result in a
change in control of the Company.

Appointment and removal of divectors
Appointment of directors shall be made at the Annual General Meeling of the Company.

The directors shall hold office for a period of one year and are eligible for re-election. An election of the directors
shall take place every year at the Annual General Meeting of the Company.
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Power of the Directors

The management and administration of the Company is vested in the Board of Directors. The powers of Board
members are contained in the Company’s Articles of Association. There are no provisions in the Company’s
Memorandum and Articles of Associalion regulating the retirement or non-retirement of directors over an age limit.
Director’s Interest

As at 30 June 2019, non-Executive directors have no beneficial interest in the share capital of the Company. The
Executive Director has an indirect beneficial interest in the share capital of the Company through his shares in Bag
Investments Co, Ltd. and Sansuna Estate Co. Ltd,

Contracts with Board Members and Employces

The Company does not have service contracts with any of its Board Members. All directors may be removed from
their posts of director by ordinary resolution of the shareholders in a general meeting.

Material Contracts

The Coinpany entered into a loan agreement with its parent Luxury Living Technologies Limitedfor the transfer of
funds received from the Bond issue. Details of such contract is set out in Note 9 to the financial statements,

On behalf of the Board

WAL .

\

- \
Mr. William Wa‘it Dr. Joseph\Borg Bartolo
Director Director /

Registered Address:
Greentek Business Complex,
New Street in Triq il-Hofor,
Qormi

30 October 2019
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Statement by the Directors on the Financial Statements and Other Information included in the Annual
Report

The directors declare that to the best of their knowledge, the financial statements included in the Annual Report are
prepared in accordance with the requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU
and give a true and [air view of the asscts, liabilities, financial posilion and profit of the Company and this report
includes a fair review of the development and performance of the business and position of the Company, together
with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties that it faces.

Signed on behalf of the board of directors on 30 October 2019 by:

Wy

Mr. William Wait
Director
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The Code adopted by the Company

The Prospects MTF Rules issued by the Malta Stock Exchange require qualifying companies admitted to
Prospects MTF to observe relevant corporate governance standards, in this case the Code of Principles of
Good Corporate Governance (“the Code™), accompanied by a report of the independent auditor.

The Board of Directors (the "Board" or the “Directors™) of Luxury Living Finance p.l.c (the "Company")
acknowledge that although the Code does not dictate or prescribe mandatory rules, compliance with the
principles of good corporate governance recommended in the Code is in the best interests of the Company,
its shareholders and other stakeholders,

The Company's structure is designed to meet the Company requirements and to ascertain that decision making
is subject to the checks and balances where this is appropriate.

General

Good corporate governance is the responsibility of the Board as a whole, and has been and remains a
priority for the Company. In deciding on the most appropriate manner in which to implement the Code,
the Board took cognisance of the Company’s size, nature and operations, and formulated the view that the
adoption of certain mechanisms and structures which may be suitable for companies with extensive
operations may not be appropriate for the Company. The limitations of size and scope of operations
inevitably impact on the structures required to implement the Code, without however diluting the
effectiveness thereof.

The Board considers that, to the extent otherwise disclosed herein, the Company has generally been in
compliance with the Code throughout the year under review.

This Statement shall now set out the strnctures and processes in place within the Company and how these
effectively achieve the goals set out in the Code for the year under review. For this purpose, this Statement will
make reference to the pertinent principles of the Code and then set out the manner in which the Board considers
{hat these have been adhered to, and where it has not.

Tor the avoidance of doubt, reference in this Statement to compliance with the principles of the Code means
compliance with the Code’s main principles.

Compliance with the code

The Directors believe that for the financial year under review the Company has generally complied with the
requirements for each of the Code’s main principles. Further information in this respect is provided hereunder.

Principle 1: The Company’s Board of Directors

The Directors report that for the financial year under review, the Directors have provided the necessary leadership
in the overall direction of the Company and have performed their responsibilities for the efficient and smooth
running of the Company with honesty, competence and integrity. The Board is composed of members who are
fit and proper to direct the business of the Company with honesty, competence and integrity. All the members
of the Boatd are fully aware of, and conversant with, the statutory and regulatory requirements conmected to the
business of the Company. The Board is accountable for its performance and that of its delegates to shareholders
and other relevant stalkeholders.

The activities of the Board are exercised in a manner designed to ensure that it can effectively supervise the
operations of the Company so as to protect the interests of the Bondholders, amongst other stakeholders. The
Board is also responsible for making relevant public announcements and for the Company’s compliance with its
continuing obligations in terms of the Prospects MTF Rules.
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The Company has a structure that ensures a mix of executive and non-executive direclors and that enables the
Board to have direct information about the Company's performance and business activities.

All directors are required to:

exercise prudent and effective controls which enable risk to be assessed and managed to achieve
continued prospetity to the company;

o be accountable for all actions or non-actions arising from discussion and actions taken by them or their
delegates,

o determine the Company’s strategic aims and the organisational structure;

¢ regularly review management performance and ensure that the Company has the appropriate mix of
financial and human resources to meet its objectives and improve the economic and commercial
prosperity of the company;

¢ acquire a broad knowledge of the Company;

o Be aware of and be conversant with the statutory and regulatory requirements connected to the business
of the company;

s Allocate sufficient time to perform their responsibilities;

o Regularly attend meetings of the board.

Principle 2; The Company’s Chairman and Chiel Executive Officer

Due to the size of the Company and the nature of its operations, the Company does not employ a Chief Executive
Officer (“CEQ”). This function is undertaken by the Executive Director.

The day to day running of the business is vested with the Executive Director of the Company.

The Chairman exercises independent judgment and is responsible to lead the Board and set its agenda, whilst
also ensuring that the directors receive precise, timely and objective information so that they can take sound
decisions and effectively monitor the performance of the Company.

Principle 3; Composition of the Board

The Board is responsible for the overall long-term strategy and general policies of the Company, of monitoring
the Company’s systems of control and financial reporting and cominunicating effectively with the market as and
when necessary. As at 30 June 2019, the Board consists of one executive director and two non-executive directors
as follows:

Dr Joseph Borg Bartolo Non-Executive Director and Chairman
Mr Jean Paul Busutitil Executive Director
Mr William Wait Independent, Non-Executive Director

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s Articles of Association, the first directors are to serve until
the end of the first annual general meeting during which the new directors shall be appointed. Thereafter, all
directors shall hold office from the general meeting at which they are elected until the next annval general
meeting. All retiring directors are eligible for re-election.

The independent non-executive Director
a) Ls not employed in any capacity with the Company;
b) Does not have a significant business relationship with the Company;
¢) Did not receive significant additional remuneration from the Company;
d) Does not have close family ties with any of the Company's executive Directors or senior employees;
e) Has not served on the Board for more than twelve consecutive years; or
f) Has not been within the last three years an engagement partner or a member of the audit team of the
present or former external auditor of the Company

Each Director hereby declares that he undertakes to:
a) to maintain in all circumstances his independence of analysis, decision and action;
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b) not to seek or accept any unreasonable advantages that could be considered as compromising his/her
independence; and

¢) to clearly express his/her opposition in the event that he finds that a decision of the Board may harm
the Company

Each director is mindful of maintaining independence, professionalism and integrity in carrying out his duties,
responsibilities and providing judgment as a director of the Company.

Principle 4: The Responsibility of the Board

The Board acknowledges its statutory mandate to conduct the administration and management of the
Company. The Board, in fulfilling this mandate and discharging its duty of stewardship of the Company,
assumes responsibility for the Company’s strategy and decisions with respect to the issue, servicing and
redemption of its bonds in issue, and for monitoring that its operations are in conformity with its commitments
towards bondholders, shareholders, and all relevant laws and regulations, The Board is also responsible for
ensuring that the Company establishes and operates effective internal control and management information
systems and that it communicates effectively with the market.

Systems and procedures are in place to control, monitor, report and assess risks and their financial
implications. Management accounts, budgets, strategic plans and prepared on a regular basis and are presented
to the Board to monitor the performance of the Company on an ongoing basis.

In terms of the Prospects MTF Rules, the board has established an Audit Committee to monitor the Company’s
present and future operations, threats and risks in the external environment and current and future strengths and
weaknesses. The Audit Cominittee ensures that the Company has the appropriate policies and procedures in
place to ensure that the Company and its empleyees maintain the highest standards of corporate conduct,
including compliance with applicable laws, regulations, business and ethical standards. The Audit Committee
has a direct link to the Board and is represented by the Chairman of the Audit Comumnittee in all board meetings.

Principle 5: Board Meetings

Meetings of the Board are held as frequently as considered necessary. The board members are notified in
advance of forthcoming meetings by the Company Secretary with the issue of an agenda and supporting
documents as necessary. Ditectors are entitled to seek independent professional advice at any time on any
aspect of their duties and responsibilities, at the Company's expense

During the financial year 5 meeting were held. The following Directors attended to Board meetings as follows:

!Er Joseph Borg Bartolo i Non-executive director and I'5 meetings

{ Mr Jean Paul Busuttil | Executive Director ) Smeetings |
| Mr William Wait | Independent, non-Executive 5 meetings

|

_.._iDirector

l

Principle 6: Information and Professional Development

Due 10 its size the Company does not employ any employees, However, as part of succession planning and
employee retention of the Luxury Living Group (the Company and its parent Luxury Living Technologies
Limited), the Board ensures that the Luxury Living Group implements appropriate schemes to recruit, retain
and motivate the employees,

Principle 7: Evaluation of the Boards Performance
Under the present circumstances, the Board does not consider it necessary to appoint a committee to carry out a

performance evaluation of ifs role, as the Board’s performance is always under the scrutiny of the shareholders
of the Company.
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Principle 8: Committees
Principle 8A: Remuneration Committee

In view of the size and type of operation of the Company, (he Board does not consider the Company to require
the sefting up of a remuneration committee, and the Board itself carries out the functions of the remuneration
committee specified in, and in accordance with, Principle Eight A of the Code, given that the remuneration of
the Directors is not performance-related.

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, the maximum aggregate emoluments that may be paid to
directors are approved by the shareholder in a general meeting. Total remuneration of €15,000 was paid to
directors during the year under review.

The remuneration of directors is a fixed amount per annum and does not include any variable component
relating to profit sharing, shave options or pension benefits.
None of the directors is employed or has a service contract with the Company.

Principle 88: Nomination Committee

In view of the size and type of operation of the Company, the Board does not consider the Company to require
the setting up of a nomination committee. Reference is also made to the information provided under the
subheading ‘Principle 3’ above, which provides for a formal and transparent procedure for the appointment of
new Directors to the Board.

Principle 9: Relations with Shareholders and with the Marlet

The Company publishes annual financial statements and when required company announcements. The Board
feels these provide the market with adequate information about its activities.

Principle 10: Institutional Shareholders

The Directors are of the view that this Principle is not applicable to the Company since it doesn’t have any
institutional investors,

Principle 11: Conflict of interest

Mr. Jean Paul Busuttil is an Executive Director and has a direct beneficial interest in the share capital of the
Company (through various companies), and as such is susceptible to conflicts arising between the potentially
diverging interests of the shareholders and the Company. During the financial year under review, no private
interests or duties unrelated to the Company were disclosed by the Directors which were or could have been
likely to place any of them in conflict with any interests in, or duties towards, the Company.

The Audit Committee has the task to ensure that any potential conflicts of interest are resolved in the best
interests of the Company. Furthermore, in accordance with the provisions of article 145 of the Companies Act
(Cap. 386 of the Laws of Malta), every Director who is in any way, whether directly or indirectly, interested in
a contract or proposed contract with the Company is under the duty to fully declare his interest in the relevant
transaction to the Board at the first possible opportunity and he will not be entitled to vote on matters relating
to the proposed transaction and only parties who do not have any conflict in considering the matter will
participate in the consideration of the proposed transaction (unless the Board finds no objection to the presence
of such Director with conflict of interest).

Principle 12: Corporate Social Responsibility
The Company seeks to adhere to sound Principles of Corporate Sccial Responsibility in its management

practices, and is committed to enhance the quality of life of all stakeholders and of the employees of the
Company and the Luxury Living Group.
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The Board is mindful of the environment and its responsibility within the community in which it operates.

In carrying on its business the Company is fully aware and at the forefront to preserving the environment and
continuously review its policies aimed at respecting the environment and encouraging social responsibility and
accountability.

Audit Committees

The Audit Committee’s primary objective is to assist the Board in fulfilling its responsibilities: in dealing with
issues of risk, control and governance; and review the financial reporting processes, financial policies and
internal control structure. During the financial year under review, the Audit Committee met four times.
Although the Audit Commitiee is set up at the level of the Company its main tasks are also related to the
activities of the Luxury Living Group.

The Board set formal rules of engagement and terms of reference of the Audit Committee that establish its
composition, role and function, the parameter of its remit and fhe basis for the processes that it is required to
comply with. The Audit Commite, is a sub-committee of the respective board it is directly responsible and
accountable to the respective board. The Boards reserves the right to change the Committee’s terms of
reference from time to time.

Briefly, the Audit Committees are expected to deal with and advise the Board on:

o its monitoring responsibility over the financial repotting processes, financial policies, internal control
structures and audit of the annual and consolidated financial statements;

o monitoring the performance of the entity borrowing funds (the Guarantor) from the Company;

¢ maintaining communications on such matters between the Board, management and the independent
auditors;

o facilitating the independence of the external audit process and addressing issues arising from the audit
process; and

s preserving the Issuer's assets by understanding the Company’s risk environment and determining how
to deal with those risks.

The Audit Committee also has the role and function of considering and evaluating on an arim’s length nature of
proposed transactions to be entered into by the Company and a related party.

The Malta Stock Exchange reviewed the Committee’s Terms of Reference as part of the admission process
with respect to the Bonds issued by the Company.

Members of the Audit Committee:

The Audit Committee is presently composed of:
e Mr William Wait (Chairman of the Audit Committee)
+ Dr Joseph Borg Bartolo
e  Mr Jean Paul Busuttil

Mr William Wait and Dr Joseph Borg Bartolo act as non-executive members of the Committee. The Audit
Cominittee is chaired by Mr, William Wait, whilst Dr Joseph Borg Bartolo and Mr Jean Paul Busuttil act as
members. In compliance with the Prospects MTF Rules, Mr William Wait is an independent, non-executive
director. The Company believes that the members of the Audit Committee have the necessary experiences,
independence and standing to hold the office as members thereof.

As stipulated in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee, the Chairman shall have a casting vote in the
case of deadlocl.

The Directors believe that the current set-up is sufficient to enable the Company to fulfil the objective of the
Prospect MTF Rules’ terms of reference in this regard.
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Internal Control

The Board is ultimately responsible for the Company’s system of internal controls aud for reviewing its
effectiveness. The Directors are aware that internal control systems are designed to manage, rather than
climinale, (he risk of failwre to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable, and not absolute,
assurance against normal business risks,

During the financial year under review the Company operated a system of internal controls which provided
reasonable assurance of effective and efficient operations covering all controls, including financial and
operational controls and compliance with laws and regulations. Processes are in place for identifying,
evaluating and managing the significant risks facing the Company.

Other key features of the system of internal control adopted by the Company in respect of its own internal
control as well as the control of its subsidiaries and affiliates are as follows:

Risk identification:

The Board, with the assistance of the management team, is responsible for the identification and evaluation of
key risks applicable to the areas of business in which the Company and the Luxury Living Group are involved.
These risks are assessed on a continual basis.

Information and communication:

Periodic strategic reviews which include consideration of long-term financial projections and the evaluation of
business alternatives are regularly convened by the Board. An annual budget is prepared and performance
against this plan is actively monitored and reported to the Board. In conclusion, the Board considers that the
Company has generally been in compliance with the Principles throughout the period under review as befits a
company of this size and nature. Non-compliance with the principles and the reasous therefor have been
identified above.

Approved by the Board on 30 Oclober 2019 and signed on its behalf by:

“ \‘] \
Mr. William \'N’ait Dr. Jos org Bartolo
Director Direct,
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I have audited the accompanying financial statements of LUXURY LIVING FINANCE p.l.c. set out on pages
16 to 30 which comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2019, and the statement of
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the period then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Opinion

In my opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Company as at 30 June 2019, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the EU and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Maltese Companies Act (Cap. 386).

Buasis for Opinion

I conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). My responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of my report. [ am independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to my audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Accountancy
Profession (Code of Ethics for Warrant Holders) Directive issued in terms of the Accountancy Profession Act
(Cap. 281) in Malta, and I have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the IESBA Code. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinien.

Key Audit Martters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgement, were of most significance in my audit of
financia: statements for the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of my audit of the
financial statements as a whole, and in forming my opinion thereon, and I do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Recoverability of group balances
Loan receivable include funds advanced to parent company, who is also the guarantor of the bonds issued by

the Company. This loan amounted to €7,918,521 as at 31 December 2018 and carries an agreed rate of interest
of 5.25% per annum.

The recoverability of this loan is assessed at the end of each financial year.

This loan is the principle asset of the Company and as such it is considered to be material

How the scope of my audit responded fo the risk

1 have reviewed the loan agreement and agreed the terms to the loan balance included in these financial

statements. I reviewed that repayments are being made in line with the agreement. I have also assessed the
financial soundness of the parent company by making reference to its latest audited financial statements.

Findings
1 coneur with mmanagement’s view that the intercompany loan is recoverable.
Other Information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Directors’ Report.
My opinion an the financial statements does not cover this information and T do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon. In conmection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or my knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
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With respect to the Directors’ Report, I also considered the whether the Directors’ Report includes the disclosures
required by Article 177 of the Maltese Companies Act (Cap. 386). Basced on the work I have performed, in my
opinion:
e  The information given in the directors’ report for the financial period for which the financial statements
are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and
o  The directors’ report has been prepared in accordance with the Maltese Companies Act (Cap. 386)

In addition, in light of the knowledge and understanding of the Company and its environment obtained in the
course of the audit, I am required to report if I have identified material misstatements in the directors’ report, I
have nothing to report in this regard.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statemeits

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU and the requirements of the
Maltese Companies Act (Cap.386), and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Othier Information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the General
Information. My opinion on the financial statements does not cover this information, and [ do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility
is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or my knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work 1 have performed, I conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, T are required to report that fact. I have nothing to report in this regard.

Aunditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

My objective is to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements, as a whole, are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, 1 exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. I also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient aod appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a naterial
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as frand may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design avdit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors. )
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o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If 1 conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, [ am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation. '

[ communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that I
identify during my audit.

| also provide those charged with governance with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, [ determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
| describe these matters in my auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances I determine that e matter should not be cominunicated in my
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonable be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Report on the Statement of Compliance with the Principles of Good Corporate Governarice

The Prospects MTF Rules issued by the Malta Stock Exchange require the directors to prepare and include in
their Annual Report a Statement of Compliance providing an explanation of the extent to which they have
adopted the Code of Principles of Good Corporate Governance and the effective measures that they have taken
to ensure compliance throughout the accounting period with those Principles.

The Prospects MTF Rules also require the auditor to include a report on the Statement of Compliance prepared
by the directors.

I read the Statement of Compliance and consider the implications for my report if I become aware of any apparent
misstatements or material inconsistencies with the financial statements included in the Annual Report. My
responsibilities do not extend to considering whether this statement is consistent with any other information
included in the Annual Report.

I am not required to, and I do not, consider whether the Board’s statements on internal control included in the
Statement of Compliance cover all risks and controls, or form an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s
corporate governance procedures or its risk and control procedures.

In my opinion, the Statement of Compliance set out on pages 6 to 11 has been properly prepared in accordance
with the requirements of the Prospect Rules issued by the Malta Stock Exchange.
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Other matfers oh which 1 am required to report-by exception

Underthe Maltese Coipanies Act (Ctip. 386) I-am required to veport 16 you if, in my opinion:

» 1 have nof received all the information and explanations 1 require for my audit.

»  Adequate accounting records have not been kept, or thatyeturms adequale for my audit have notbeep recoived
from branches not visited by us.

v The financial stalements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returis.

T have nofhing to report to you in respet of these respansibilitics.

Louis Padovani
Certified Public Accountant & Registered Auditor

‘Kyle', Apartment 4,
Triq il-Meditenan,
St. Julians. STT 1870.
30 October 2019
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Finance income
Finance costs

Net interest income
Other income

Administrative expenses

Profit before Taxation

Income Tax

Profit for the period

Total comprehensive income for the period

Earnings per share (cents)

Notes

14 months to
30-Jun-19

€

379,346

(366,667)

12,679
45,000

(42,813)

14,866

(5,203)

9,663

9,663

19¢
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2019
Notes €
ASSETS
Non-Current assets
Loan receivable 9 7,918,521
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 14 460,434
Total Assets 8,378,955
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and Reserves
Share capital 10 50,000
Retained earnings 11 9,663
59,663
Non-Current Liabilities
Borrowings 12 7,920,682
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables 13 393,407
Taxation 5,203

Total Equity and Liabilities

398,610

_8378955

The financial statements on page 16 to 19 were approved and signed by the Directors on 30 October 2019:

A

Mr, William Wakl
Director

Dr, Josg h
Director

g Bartolo
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Share Accumulated

Capital Profits Total

€ € €

Issue of share capital 50,000 - 50,000
Profit for the period - 9,663 9,663
Total comprehensive income for the period 50,000 9,663 59,663
Balance at 30 June 2019 50,000 9,663 59,663
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Note
Cash flows from operating activities

Profit for the period before taxation

Adjustment jfor:

Amortisation of bond issue costs
Finance incolne

Finance costs

Working capital changes:
Change in trade and other payables

Cash generated from operations
Interest received

Net cash generated {rom operating activitics

Cash flows from investing activities
Issue of share capital

Net cash generated from investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities

Loans advanced to parent company

Bond proceeds

Issue costs

Net cash generated from finaneing activities
Movement in eash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period LS

The notes on pages 20 and 30 are an integtal part of these financial statements,

14 months to
30-Jun-19
€

14,866
14,866
8,057

(379,346)
366,667

10,244

45,562

55,806
360,434

416,240

50,000

50,000

(7,918,521)
8,000,000
(87,375)

(5,896)

460,434

460,434
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Notes to the Financial Stafements

1.

General Information

The financial statements of LUXURY LIVING FINANCE p.l.c. (“the Company”) have been prepared in
accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU. The financial
statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for land and buildings which are stated at
their revalued amount. These financial statements present information about the Company as an individual
undertaking.

Significant accounting policics

Basis of preperation and consolidation

The financial statements of LUXURY LIVING FINANCE p.le. (“the Company™) have been prepared in
accordance with the provisions of the Maltese Companies Act, (Cap 386) enacted in Malta, which require
adherence to International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by EU.

Luxury Living Finance p.Lc. is a public limited liability company. Luxury Living Finance p.l.c. is
incorporated in Malta with registered address Greentek Business Complex, New Street in Triq il-Hofor,
Qormi. The parent company of Luxury Living Finance p.l.c. is Luxury Living Technologies Limited of
the same address. The Company’s ultimate beneficial owner is Jean Paul Busuttil.

Reporting period.

The company was incorporated on 25 April 2018. Consequently, these financial statements cover a
fourteen-month period.

Basis of measurement
The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis.
Going concern

The Company’s principal activity is to act as a finance company. The Company in itself does not have
substantial assets and is a special purpose vehicle set up to raise finance for the business of Luxury Living
Group. The parent company, Luxury Living Technologies Limited was set up as a company to provide eco
and renewable energy solutions which is expected to generate income from the sale of domestic photovoltaic
panels and feed-in-tariffs from the installation of photovoltaic farms. As from the first quarter of 2020,
Luxury Living Technologies Limited shall expand its operations through the operation of an 80-bed boutique
hotel, which is currently in development.

In preparing these financial statements, the directors of the Company made reference to the anticipated
revenue streams which are expected to be generated over the years from the continued sale of photovoltaic
panels, further connection of photovoltaic farms which in tumn shall generate monthly feed-in-tariffs and the
operation of the St. Julian’s boutique hotel.

Despite the fact that Luxury Living Technologies Limited generated a loss for the year ending 30 June 2019,
the directors believe that it remains appropriate to prepare these financial statements on a going concern basis.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements arc presented in Euro (€) which is the Company’s functional currency.
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2,

Significant accounting policies (cont.)
Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs, requires the use of certain accounting
estimates, It also requires management Lo exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Company’s
accounting policies (refer to Note 4 — Critical accounting estimates and judgements).

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

Significant Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the periods presented, unless otherwise stated.

Revenue

Revenue is measured at fair value. Amounts disclosed as revenue ate interest income from loans and
management recharge. ‘

Finance income and finance cost

Finance income and finance cost are recognised in profit or loss for all interest-bearing instruments on a
time-propertionate basis using the effective interest method, Finance costs include the effect of
amortising any difference between net proceeds and redemption value in respect of the Company’s
borrowings. Finance income and costs are recognised as they accrue, unless collectability is in doubt.

Income taxation

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax are recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income expect to the extent that it related to a business combination, or items
recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current tax is expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the period, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, any adjustments to tax payable in respect of
previous years,

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected 1o be applied to temporary difference when they
reserve, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right ta offset current tax liabilities and
assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on
different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax
assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

A deferred tax asset is recognised for unused tax losses, tax credits and deductible temporary differences,
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be utilise.
Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.
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3, Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Earnings per share

The Company presents basic eamnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares, Basic EPS is caleulated
by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period.

Financial instruments
Recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provision of the instrument.

A financial asset {unless it is a trade receivable without a significant component) or financial liability is
initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), transaction
costs are attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a significant component is
measured at transaction price.

Classification and subsequent measurement
i. Financial assefs

On the recognition, a financial asset is ciassified as measures at: amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI) (debt investment), F'VOCI (equity instrument) or FVTPL.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Company changes its
business mode} for managing financial assets, in which case all affected financial assets are reclassified
on the first day of the first reporting period following the change in the business model.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if is meets both the following conditions and is not
designated as FVTPL:

o itis held within a business model whose objective is achieved by collecting contractual cash flows
and;

s itscontractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A financial asset is measured at FVOCI if it meets both the following conditions and is not designed at
FVTPL:
e itis held within a business model whose objective by collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets and;
o itscontractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount standing.

On the initial recogpition of an equity investment that is not held for trading the Company may irrevocably
clect Lo present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCI. This election is made on an
investment basis.

Al financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at FVTPL. On
initial recognition the Company may irrevocably designated a financial asset that otherwise meets the
requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL, if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise,
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instraments (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement (continued)
i Financial assets

Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is
held because this best reflects, the way the business is managed, and information is provided to
management. The information considered included:

o history of the Company’s bad debts
s liquidity position of inter-companies *

Assessment whether contractual cashflows are SPPI

For the purpose of this assessment, “principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial assets on initial
recognition, ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for credit risk
associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flow are SPPL, the Company considers the contractual terms of
the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that could
change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition.

Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains
and losses and impairment are recognised through profit and loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is
recognised in profit or loss.

ii.  Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTLP. A financial liability is
classified as FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, it is a derivative it is designated as such on
initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measures at fair value and net gains and losses,
including any interest expenses, are recognised in profit or loss.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Interest expenses and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gains or
loss on derecognition is also considered in profit or loss.

Derecognition

The Company derecognises a financial assel when the contractual righis to the cash flow from the
financial assets expire, or it transfer the right to receive the contractual cash in a transaction in which
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets transferred or on which the

Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does
does not retain control of the financial asset.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Classification and subsequent measurement (continued)
i. Financial liabilities (continued)
Derecognition (continued)

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled or expire. The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified
and the cash flows of the modified liability are substantially different, in which case a new financial
liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value.

On the derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount extingnished
and the consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed) is
recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of
financial position when, and only when, the Company currently has legally enforceable right to set
off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

Impairments
i.  Non- derivative financial assets

The Company recognises loss allowance for ECLs on financial assets measured at amortised cost. The
Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to 12~-month ECLs. When determining whether
the credit risk of a financial asset has increase significantly since initial recognition and when estimating
ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available
without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis
based on the Company’s historical experience and informed credit assessment including forward
information. I2-month ECLS are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date (or shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less
than 12 months).

Credit impaired financial assels

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are
credit impaired. A financial asset is credit impaired when one or more events have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company has no reasonable
expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirely or a portion thereof,

Non-derivative financial assets

Financial assets not classified as at FVTPL are assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there
is objective evidence of impairment.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Cash and cash equivalentis
Cash comprises demand deposits. Cash equivalents are short-term investments that are held to meet
short-term investments that are held to meet shorl-term cash commitments rather that for investment
or other purposes.
Share capital
Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly atributable to the issue of ordinary
shares and share options are recognised as deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a liability in the Company’s
financial statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholder.
Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and based on historical experience and other factors
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Tn the opinion of the directors, the accounting estimates and judgements made in the course of preparing
these financial statements are not difficult, subjective or complex to a degree which would warrant their
deseription as critical in terms of the requirements of IAS 1 (revised).

Finance Income

14 months to

30-Jun-19
€

Interest receivable on long term loan due from parent
company 379,346
379,346

Finance Costs

14 months to

30-Jun-19

€

[nterest payable on bonds 366,667
Amortisation of bond issue costs 8,057

374,724
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.

Profit before Taxation
This is stated afier charging the following:

14 months to
30-Jun-19
€

Directors’ remuneration 15,000

The total remuneration paid to the Company’s auditors during the year amounts to:

14 months to
30-Jun-19
€

Annual statutory audit fees 1,500

Income Tax
Income tax recogniscd in statement of comprehensive income

14 months to

30-Jun-19

€

Current tax expense 5,203

The tax charge and the result of accounting profit multiplied by statutory income tax rate are
reconciled as follows:

14 months to
30-Jun-19
€

Profit for the year before taxation 14,866

Tax at the applicable statutory rate of 35% 5,203

Tax effect of:
Adjustment to tax charge -

Tax charge 5,203
Loan Receivable
2019
€
Non-current

Loan receivable from parent company 7,918,521

7,918,521

Loan receivable relates to the transfer of funds to parent company, generated by the Company from the
issue of bonds.

Non-current portion of loan receivable from parent company is unsecured, carries interest at 5.25% per
annum and is repayable in full by not later than 30 June 2028.
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10.

11.

12,

At 30 June 2019, this financial asset was fully performing and hence does not contain impaired assets.

Maturity of loans and receivables:

2019
€
Within 2 and 5 years 750,000
Qver 5 years 7,168,521
7,918,521
Share Capital
2019
€
Authorised, Issued and Fully paid Up
49,999 Ordinary ‘A’ shares of €1 each 49,999
I Ordinary ‘B’ share of €1 each 1
50,000
Retained Earnings
This represents accumulated profits, During the year under review, no dividends were paid out of
retained earnings.
Borrowings
2019
€
Non-current
8,000,000 5% Secured Bonds 2028 7,920,682

Bonds outstanding (face valug) 8,000,000

Gross amount of bond issue costs (87,375)

Amortisation of gross amount of bond issue costs:
Amortisation charge for the year 8.057

Unamortised bond issue cosis (79.318)

Amortised cost and closing carrying amount 7,920,682

Interest on the 5% Secured Bonds 2028 is payable annually in arrears, on 29 July of each year.

The Secured Bonds shall constitute the general, direct and uncondiiional obligations of the Issuer, and
shall at all times rank pari passu, without any priority or preference among themselves. The Secured
Bonds shall be guaranteed in respect of both the interest and the principal amount due under said Secured
Bonds by the Guarantor in terms of the Guarantee. The Secured Bonds shall rank with priority in relation
to the Pledged Shares.

Pursuant to the Pledge Agreement, the Pledgor has agreed to constitute in favour of the Security Trustee
for the benefit of Bondholders as Beneficiaries, a pledge over the shares held in Luxury Living
Technologies Limited.

The Pledge will secure the claim of the Security Trustee, for the benefit and in the interest of
Bondholders, for the repayment of the principal and interest under the Secured Bonds.




LUXURY LIVING FINANCE p.l.c.
Schedule to the Financial Statements
For the period ended 30 June 2019 Page 28

13.

14.

Trade and other payables

2019
€

Accrued expenses 372,687

Amounts due to parent company 20,720

393,407

Amounts due to a parent company are unsecured, interest free and have no fixed date for repayment but
are expected to be repaid within the next twelve menths.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents included in the cash flow statement comprise the following balance sheet
amounts:

2019
€

Cash at bank and in hand 460,434

15. Related Party Transactions

The Company’s related narties include parent company, key management personnel (the directors) and
all other companies up to the ultimate beneficial owner.

Unless otherwise stated, none of the transactions incorporates special terms and conditions and no
guarantees were given or received. Outstanding balances are usually settled in cash.

15.1 Transactions with key management personnel

Other than the remunerations paid to the directors in note 7, there were no other transactions with key
management personnel.

18,2 Transactions with the parent company

Transactions with parent company are included in note 5 whilst balances are shown separately in note 9.

16. Earnings per Share

Earnings per share is based on the profit after taxation attributable to the ordinary shareholders of the
company divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

2019

€

Net profit attributable to owners of the company 9,663
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue (Note 10) 50,000

Earnings per share (cents) 19¢
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17. Financial Risk Management

At the end of the period, the Company’s main financial assets compromised loan receivable from parent
company and cash held at bank. At the period end the Company's main financial liabilities consisted of
borrowings and trade and other payables.

The Company constitutes a financing special purpose vehicle whose bonds are matched by equivalent
amounts due from, and guaranteed by, Luxury Living Technologies Limited (parent company).

The Company’s principal risk exposures relate to credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company is not
exposed to currency risk and the directors consider interest rate risk exposure to be minimal due to
matching of interest costs on borrowings with finance income from its loans and receivables,

Timing of Cash Flows

The presentation of the above mentioned financial assets and liabilities listed above under the current
and non-current headings within the statement of financial position is intended to indicate the {iming in
which cash flows will arise.

Credit Risk

Financial assets which potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist
principally of loan receivables from parent company and cash at bank (Notes 9 and 14). the carrying
amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure.

The Company’s cash at bank is placed with quality firancial institutions. The Company’s receivables
consist mainly of loan receivables from parent and accordingly credit risk in this respect is limited.

Liquidity Risk

The Company is exposed to liquidity risk in relation to meeting future obligations associated with its
financial liabilities, which compromise principally interest-bearing borrowings and trade and other
payables (refer to Notes 12 and 13). The Company is exposed to liquidity risk arising from its ability to
satisfy liability commitments depending on cash inflows receivable in turn from Luxury Living
Technologies Limited.

Management monitors liquidity risk by means of cash flows forecasts on the basis of expected cash
flows over a twelve-month period to ensure that no additional financing facilities are expected to be
required over the coming year. This process is performed through a rigorous assessment of detailed cash
flow projections of the parent company where matching of cash inflows and outflows arising from
expected maturities of financial instruments are assessed on an annual basis.

The carrying amounts of the Company’s assets and liabilities are analysed into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period at the end of the reporting period to the contractual maturity
dates in the respective notes to the financial statements,

Capital Management

The Company’s bonds are guaranteed by Luxury Living Technologies Limited (the parent). Related
finance costs are also guaranteed by the parent company. The capital management of the Company
therefore consists of a process of regularly monitoring the financial position of the guarantor.
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Fair Values of Financial Instriuments

At 30 June 2019, the carrying amounts of receivables and payables are assumed to approximate their fair
values. The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the
future contracted cash flows at the current market interest rate that is available to the Company or similar
financial instrutments.

As at end of the reporting period, the fair values of financial assets and liabilities, approximated the
carrying amounts shown in the statement of financial position,
18. Events after the end of the reporting period

No adjusting or significant non-adjusting events have occurred between the reporting date and the date
of authorisation for issue of these financial statements.




LUXURY LIVING TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

Annual Report
and
Financial Statemenis
30 June 2019

Company Registration Number C 74593




LUXURY LIVING TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED
Annual Report and Financial Statements

30 June 2019
INDEX
Page
1-2 Directors' Report
3-5 Independent Auditor’s Report
6 Statement of Comprehensive Income
7 Statement of Financial Position
8-9 Statement of Changes in Equity
10 Statement of Cash Flows
11-27 Notes to the Financial Statements




LUXURY LIVING TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED
Directors’ Report
30 June 2019 Page 1

The directors present their report together with the audited financial statements of the Company and the Group
for the year ended 30 June 2019.

Principal Activities

Luxury Living Technologies Limited was incorporated on | March 2016 as a private limiled liability. The
principal objects of the Company relate to providing eco and renewable energy solutions, specialising in
installations of photovoltaic units in a variety of domestic, industrial and agricultural locations. The Company’s
operations comprise the trading, importing and exporting, installing and maintaining of all kinds of merchandise
related to renewable energy, especially water softening and purifying systems, solar panels and solar powered
devices and similar related products in domestic, industrial and agricultural locations.

Performance Review

During the year under review the Company’s objectives remained focused on providing eco and renewable
energy solutions to retail customers as well expand its operations into photovoltaic farms. To this end, on 29
November 2018 the Company acquired three photovoltaic farms situated in Luga, Qormi and Maghtab for
€2,135,000 and by 30 June 2019 had installed and connected a further four photovoltaic farms. However, due to
logistical issues encountered, the Company took longer than expected to connect these photovoltaic farms, and
subsequently had installed but not connected three photovoltaic farms by 30 June 2019,

During the year, the Company also commenced the development of 80-bed hostel situated in St. Julian’s.
However, due to recent events in the construction industry this resulted in unexpected delays in the development
of the St. Julian’s hostel, and is expected to commence operations in the first quarter of 2020,

During the year the Company generated turnover of €680,057, a decrease of €511,605 over the previous year.
This is due to a commercial sales of €990,000 generated during FY2019, which are being accounted for over a
five year period, rather than in the year of invoice in accordance with IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with
Customers. Despite this, the Company generated a gross profit margin of 60%, an increase of 11 percentage
points over 2018.

Administrative expenses increased from €386,814 in FY2018 to €546,664 in FY2019 in order to support the
Company’s envisaged growth going forward, This increase in administrative expenses is principally due to the
introduction of additional staff members, insurance expenses, motor vehicle expenses, ongoing bond issue costs
and higher depreciation costs on the property, plant and equipment.

Consequently, the Company registered a loss for the year of €283,837 before ax.

Outlook for 2020

The principal objective for Luxury Living Group is to strengthen and expand its core business by investing in
photovoltaic farms generating less than 1 MW, as well as diversify its operations into the tourism industry, It is
for this reason that the Luxury Living Group’s principal strategic ambition is to provide a successful and
sustainable business model, by building on Malta’s commitment to reach [0% of its gross final energy
consumption from renewable energy sources by 2020.

Dividends and Reserves

The results for the year are set in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income on page 6.

The Board of Directors daes not propose the payment of a dividend.
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Registration

LUXURY LIVING TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED is registered in Malta as a limited liability company under
the Companies Act. (Cap. 386) with registration number C 74593.

Directors

Mr. Jean Paul Busuttil

Ms. Mirjam Busuttil (Resigned on 2 May, 2018)
Mr William Wait (Appointed on 2 May, 2018)
Mr Carle Mifsud (Appointed on 2 July, 2018)

Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial period which give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial period and of the profit or loss of
the company for that period.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are required to:-

s sclect suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently;

¢ make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent in the circumstances;

e adopt the going concern basis, unless it is inappropriate to presume that the company will continue in
business as a going concern;

e account for income and charges relating to the accounting period on the accruals basis;

s  value separately the components of assels and liability items; and

s report comparative figures corresponding to those of the preceding accounting period.

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy, at
any time, the financial position of the company and to enable the directors to ensure that the financial statements
have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act (Cap.386) enacted in Malta. This
responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining such intemal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, The directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregulatities.

Auditors

The auditor, Mr Louis Padovani CPA has expressed his willingness to remain in office and a resolution proposing
his reappointment will be put before the members at the annual general meeting,.

Approved and signed by the Directors:

(R _

= . Pt - 7
Mr. William Wéut / Mr Carlo Mifsud
Director / Director
Registered Address: {

Greentek Business Complex,
New Street in Triq il-Hofor,
Qormi

30 October 2019
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I have audited the accompanying financial statements of LUXURY LIVING TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED set
out on pages 6 to 27 which comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2019, and the statement of
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equily and statement of cash flows for the period then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Opinion

In my opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the statement of financial
position of the Company as at 30 June 2019, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU (EU [FRSs) and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Maltese Companies Act (Cap. 386) and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the said Act.

Basis for Opinion

[ conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). My responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of my report. I am independent of the Company in accordance with the International Bthics Standards
Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to my audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Accountancy
Profession (Code of Ethics for Warrant Holders) Directive issued in terms of the Accountancy Profession Act
(Cap. 281) in Malta, and I have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the IESBA Code. I believe that the audit evidence 1 have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion.

Key Andit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgement, were most of significance in my audit
of financial statements for the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of my audit of the
financial statements as a whole, and in forming my opinion thereon, and I do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Other Information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Directors’ Report.
My opinion on the financial statements does not cover this information, and I do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or my knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated,

With respect to the Directors’ Report, I also considered whether the Directors’ Report includes the disclosures
required by Article 177 of the Maltese Companies Act (Cap.386). Based on the work I have performed, in my
opinion:
e (he information given in the directors’ report for the financial period for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and
» the directors’ report has been prepared in accordance with the Maltese Companies Act (Cap.386).

In addition, in light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the
course of the audit, I am required to report if I have identified material misstatements in the directors’ report. T
have nothing to report in this regard,
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Responsibilities of the Directors

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU and the requirements of the
Maltese Companies Act (Cap.386) and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

[n preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My objective is to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these {inancial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, 1 exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. [ also:
= Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or

error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of nol detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

=  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control.

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

=  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If I conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, [ am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause tle company to cease to continue as a going concern,

=  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation,

I communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that I identify during my audit.




LUXURY LIVING TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED
Independent Audltor’s Report ‘
30 June, 2019 Page 5

Report on Other Legal and Regilatory Requirements

Under the Maltese Conipanies Act (Cap. 38G) I ain required to report to you if, in my opinian:

v [ have not received all Llhe information and explanations I require for my audit.

»  Adcquate accounting records have notbeen kept, or thal returns adequato for my audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us.

= The financial statements are nol in agreement with the accountilig records and rejurns,

I have niothing to report to you in respect of these responsibilities.

Louis Padovani
Certiffed Public Accountnnt & Registered Auditor

"Kyle’, Apariment 4,
Trig il-Mediterran,
St. Jnlians, STJ 1870

30 Octaber 2019
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Note
Turnover 4
Cast of sales
Gross profit
Administrative expenses
Operating (loss)/profit
Interest expense
(Loss)/Profit before Taxation 5
Taxation 7

(Loss)/Profit for the year

Page 6

The Group The Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
€ € € €
680,057 1,191,662 680,057 1,191,662
(273,251) (603,368) (273,251) {603,368)
406,806 588,294 406,806 588,294
(543,477) (386,814) (545,664) (386,814)
(136,671) 201,480 (138,858) 201,480
(140,603) (47,033) (144,979) (47,033)
(277,274) 154,447 (283,837) 154,447
153,994 (1,718) 156,291 (1,718)
(123,280) 152,729 (127,546} 152,729
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The Group The Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
Note € € € €
ASSETS
Non-current Assets
[ntangible assets 2,831,000 2,831,000 2,831,000 2,831,000
Investment in subsidiary 9 - - 50,000 -
Deferred tax asset 7 151,088 - 156,291 -
Trade and other receivables 10 2,123,188 2,123,188
Plant and equipment 8 2,189,283 55,721 2,189,283 55,721
7,294,559 2,886,721 7,349,762 2,886,721
Current Assets
Inventories 2,413,776 583,358 2,422,079 583,358
Trade and other receivables 10 1,799,182 1,831,644 1,819,902 1,831,644
Cash at bank 3,163,772 25,205 2,703,338 25,205
7,376,730 2,440,207 6,945,319 2,440,207
Total Assets 14,671,289 5,326,928 14,295,081 5,326,928
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and Reserves
Share capital 11 2,931,000 2,931,000 2,931,000 2,931,000
Accumulated (loss)/profit (124,774) 1,904 (126,134) 1,904
Total equity 2,806,226 2,932,904 2,804,866 2,932,904

Non-Current Liabilities
Interest bearing borrowings 13 8,945,211 1,132,989 8,943,050 1,132,989
8,945,211 1,132,989 8,943,050 1,132,989

Current Liabilities

Bank overdraft 13 387,520 495,694 387,520 495,694
Interest bearing borrowings 13 - 231,024 - 231,024
Trade and other payables 14 2,530,614 532,599 2,157,927 532,599
Taxation 0 1,718 1,718 1,718
Total current liabilities 2,919,852 1,261,035 2,547,165 1,261,035
Total Equity and Liabilities 14,671,289 5,326,928 14,295,081 5,326,928

The notes on pages 11 to 27 form part of these financial statements.

The financial statements on pages 6 to 27 were approved and signed by the Directors on 30 October 2019

-

.
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Mr, William WL“ /  Mr Carlo Mifsud

Director / Director
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The Group

Balance at | July 2018
Issue of share capital

Profit for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

Balance at 30 June 2018

Balance as at 1 July, 2018

Prior year adjustinent

Loss for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year
Balance as at 30 June, 2019

The Group

Balance at 1 July 2018
Issue of share capital

Profit for the year

Total comprehensive income for the
year

Balance at 30 June 2018
Balance as at 1 July, 2018
Prior year adjustment

Loss for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

Balance as at 30 June, 2019

Page 8
Share Accumulated
Capital Profit Total
€ € €
100,000 (150,825) (50,825)
2,831,000 - 2,831,000
- 152,729 152,729
2,931,000 1,904 2,932,904
2,931,000 1,904 2,932,904
2,931,000 1,904 2,932,904
- (492) (492)
- (126,186) (126,186)
2,931,000 (124,774) 2,806,226
2,931,000 (124,774) 2,806,226
Share Accumulated
Capital Profit Total
€ € €
100,000 (150,825) {(50,825)
2,831,000 - 2,831,000
- 152,729 152,729
2,931,000 1,904 2,932,904
2,931,000 1,904 2,932,904
2,931,000 1,904 2,932,904
- (492) (492)
- {126,186) (126,186)
2,931,000 (124,774) 2,806,226
2,931,000 (124,774) 2,806,226
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The Company

Balance at 1 July 2018
Issue of share capital

Profit for the year

Tolal comprehensive income for the
year

Balance at 30 June 2018

Balance as at 1 July, 2018

Prior year adjustment

Loss for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

Balance as at 30 June, 2019

Share Accumulated

Capital Profit Total

€ € €

100,000 (150,825) (50,825)
2,831,000 - 2,831,000
- 152,729 152,729
2,931,000 1,904 2,932,904
2,931,000 1,904 2,932,904
2,931,000 1,904 2,932,904
- (492) (492)

- (127,546) (127,546)
2,931,000 (126,134) 2,804,866
2,931,000 (126,134) 2,804,866

The notes on pages 11 to 27 form part of these financial statements.

Page 9
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Statement of Cash Flows
30 June, 2019

Nole

Cash flows from operating activities
(Loss)/Profit for the year before taxation

Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amottisation
Prior year adjustment

Interest expense

Working capital changes:

Change in inventories

Change in trade and other receivables
Change in trade and other payables
Cash gencrated used in operations

Interest paid

Net cash used in operating activities
Cash from investing activities
Investment in subsidiary

Aquisition of property, plant and
equipment

Net cash used in investing activities
Cash from financing activities

Bond proceeds

Issue of bonds

Loans received from parent subsidiary
Bank draw down/ (repayment)

Net cash generated from financing activities
Movement in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of
year 13

Page 10
The Group The Company

2019 2018 2019 2018
€ € € €

(277,274) 154,447 (283,837) 154,447
103,962 14,803 95,905 14,803
(492) - (492) -
140,603 47,033 144,979 47,033
(33,201) 216,283 (43,445) 216,283
(1,830,417) (207,621) (1,838,722) (207,621)
(2,090,726) (1,261,736) (2,111,446) (1,261,736)
1,910,511 451,272 1,533,448 451,272
(2,043,833) (801,802) (2,460,165) (801,802)
(53,099) (47,033) (53,099) (47,033)
(2,096,932) (848,835) (2,513,264) (848,835)
- - (50,000) -
(2,229,467) (3,592) (2,229,467) (3,592)
(2,229,467) (3,592) (2,279,467) (3,592)
8,000,000 - - -

(87,375) - - -

w w 7,918,521 -

(339,484) 629,013 (339,484) 629,013
7,573,142 629,013 7,579,038 629,013
3,246,743 (223,414) 2,786,307 (223,414)
(470,489) (247,075 (470,489) (247,075)
2,776,252 (470,489) 2,315,818 (470,489)

The notes on pages 11 to 27 form part of these financial statements.
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i

2,

Corporate information

The consolidated financial statements of Luxury Living Technologies Limited and its subsidiary Luxury
Living Finance p.lc. (‘the Group®) for the year ended 30 June 2019 were authorised for issue in
accordance with a resolution of the directors on 30 October 2019.

Luxury Living Technologies Limited (‘the Company') is a limiled liability company domiciled and
incorporated in Malta.

Significant accounting policies
2.1 Basis of preparation and conselidation

These financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
measurement of investment property, land and buildings classified as property, plant and equipment and
financial assets at fair value and are in accordance with the requirements of the International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS as adopted by the European Union and comply with the Companies Act, Cap.
386 of the Laws of Malta, It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the company’s accounting policies (see Note 3 — Critical accounting estimates and judgements). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in Euro (€), which is the functional currency of the Group.

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiary as at 30 June 2019. The subsidiary is fully consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the
date on which the Group obtains control, and continues to be consolidated until the date when such control
ceases. The financial statements of the subsidiary are prepared for the same reporting period as the parent
company, using consistent accounting policies.

All intragroup balances, transactions, unrealised gains and losses resulting from intragroup transactions
and dividends are eliminated in full.

2.2 New and revised standards that are effective for the current period

In the current year, the entity has applied IFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the related consequential
amendments to other International Financial Reporting Standards that are effective for periods that begin
on or after | January 2018. IFRS 9 introduced new requirements for the classification and measurement
of financial assets and introduced an ‘expected credit loss’ model for the impairment of financial assets.

In adopting IFRS 9, the entity has applied transitional relief and opted not to restate prior periods. Any
differences between previous carrying amounts and those determined under IFRS 9 at the date of initial
application, under this option, is included in opening retained earnings or equivalent component of equity.

There have been no changes to the classification or measurement of financial assets and liabilities as a
result of the application of IFRS 9,

In the current year, the entity has applied IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers which is
effective for periods that begin on or after | January 2018. IFRS 15 introduced a 5-step approach to
revenue recognition.

The application of IFRS 15 has not had an impact on the financial position and financial performance of
this entity on commercial contracts entered into before 1 July 2018, however the commercial contract
entered into during FY2019 is being accounted for over a five year period.

New and revised standards that are issued but not yet effective

IFRS 16, ‘Leases’ introduces a comprehensive model for the identification of lease arrangements and
accounting treatments for both lessors and lessees. Under the new standard, an asset (the right to use the
leased item) and a financial liability to pay rentals are recognised, except for short-term and low-value
leases. IFRS 16 will supersede the current [ease guidance of IAS 17 and the related interpretations. The
standard is mandatory for periods commencing on or after 1 January 2019,
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At this stage the company is still in the process of assessing and evaluating the impact of IFRS 16.
2.2 Current vs non-current classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position based on current/non-

current classification. An asset is current when it is:

- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle;

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting date; or

- Cash and cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting date.

All other assets are classified as non-current,

A liability is current when:

- Itisexpected to be settled in the normal operating cycle;

- Ttis held primarily for the purpose of trading;

- Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date; or

- ‘There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting date.

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
2.3 Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment except for land and buildings, are measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly atiributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-
constructed assels includes the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to
bringing the assets to a working condition for their intended use, the costs of dismantling and removing
the items and restoring the site on which they are located, and capitalised borrowing costs (see note 4.2).
Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as part of
that equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the assel’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the income statement during the financial
period in which they are incurred

Land and buildings held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes, are stated in the statement of financial position at their revalued amounts, being the fair value at
the date of revaluation, less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses. Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity such that the carrying amounts
do not differ materially from those that would be determined using fair values at the end of the reporting
period.

Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of such land and buildings is recognised in other
comprehensive income, except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease for the same asset
previously recognised in profit or loss, in which case the increase is credited to profit or loss to the extent
of the decrease previously expensed. A decrease in the carrying amount arising on the revaluation of such
land and buildings is recognised in profit or loss (o the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any, held in
the properties revaluation reserve relating to a previous revaluation of that asset.
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Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing
the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment, and are recognised
net within other income in profit or loss. When revalued assets are sold, the amounts included in the
revaluation reserve are transferred to retained earnings.

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated over the depreciable amount, which is the cost of an asset, or other amount
substituted for cost, less its residual value, Depreciation is recognised in profit or loss on a siraight-line
basis over the estimated useful lives of each part of an item of praoperty, plant and equipment, since this
most closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the
asset.

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative periods are as follows:

s Motor vehicles 20%

Other equipment 10%
Computer equipment 25%
o Furniture and Fittings 10%
» Photovoltaic fams 5%

* =

Depreciation methods, useful life and residual values are reassessed at each reporting date.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the statement of comprehensive income when the asset is derecognised,

2.4 Intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a proportionate
basis.

Impairment of Intangible Assels

Al the end of each reporting petiod, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of
impairment loss (if'any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs/
When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocalion can be identified, assels are also allocated to
individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects the current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset
for which the estimates of future cash flow have not been adjusted.

1f the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, then the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried
at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.
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When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is increased to the revised estimate of recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

2.5 Investment in subsidiary

A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by the company. Control is the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

Investment in subsidiaries is stated at cost less any impairment loss which may have arisen. Income from the
investment is recognised only to the extent of distributions received from the Company from post-acquisition
profits. Distributions received in excess of such profits are regarded as recovery of investment and are
recognised as a reduction of the cost of investment,

2.6 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value, and includes photovoltaic farms which
are in the course of construction. Consequently, costs include material, labour, borrowing costs and any
other costs directly attributable to the photovoltaic farms. Once photovoltaic farms are connected to the
grid, these are transferred from inventory to propertly, plant and equipment.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated
costs of completion and selling expenses.

2.7 Other receivables

Other receivables include, receivables created by enterprise by providing funds directly to a debtor and
are measured at cost.

Prepayments comprise payments made in advance in respects of expenditure relating to the subsequent
financial year and accrued income is income relating to the current period, which will not be invoiced
until after the current reporting date.

2.8 Cash and short term deposits

Cash and short-term deposits in the statement of financial position comprise cash at bank and in hand and
short-term deposits with a maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value,

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cashflows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and
short-term deposits as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafls as they are considered an integral
part of the Group’s cash management.

2.9 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly atiributable to the issue of new shares are
shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.10 Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past

events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made.
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Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as
interest expense,

2.11 Foreign currencies

Translations denominated in foreign currencies are transiated at the exchange rate ruling on the date of the
transactions, Monetary receivables and payables denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates
of exchange prevailing at each reporting date. Translation differences are dealt within the statement of
comprehensive income.

2.12 Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provision of the instrument.

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant component) or financial liability is
initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit and loss (F'VTPL), fransaction
costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a significant
component is measured at transaction price.

Classification and subsequent ineasurement

i. Financial assets
On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at; amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI) (debt investment) , FVOCI (equity instrument) or FVTPL.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Company changes its
business model for managing financial assets, in which case all affected financial assets are reclassified on
the first day of the first reporting period following the change in the business model.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if is meets both the following conditions and is not designated
as FVTPL:

- it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows
and:

- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest (SPPL) on the principal amount outstanding.

A financial asset is measured at FVOCI if it meets both the following conditions and is not designated at

FVTPL:

- it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets and;

- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading the Company may irrevocably elect
to present subsequent changes in the investment's fair value in OCI. This election is made on an investment
by investment basis,

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOC] are measured at FVTPL On initial
recognition the Company may irrevocably designale a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements
to be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL, if doing so eliminates or significantly reduce an
accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.
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Business Model Assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held
because this best reflects the way the business is managed, and information provided to managemeni. The
information considered included;

e history of the Company's bad debt

o liquidity posilion of inter-companies

Assessment whether contractual cashflows are SPPI

For the purpose of this assessment, ‘principal' is defined as the fair value of the financial assets on initial
recognition. 'Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for credit risk associated
with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are SPPI, the Company considers the contractual terms of the
instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that could change
the timing or amount of contractual cashflows such that it would not meet this condition.

Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets at amorfised cost are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and
losses and impairment are recognised through profit and loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised
in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL, A financial liability is classified
as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial
recoguition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any
interest expenses, are recognised in profit or loss.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on
derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire, or it transfer the right to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially
all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Company
neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain
control of the financial asset.

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled,
or expire. The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows
of the modified liability are substantially different, in which case a new financial liability based on the
modified terms is recognised at fair value,

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount extinguished and the
consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed) is recognised in profit or
loss.




LUXURY LIVING TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statemen(s
30 June, 2019 Page 17

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial
position when. and only when, the Company currently has legally enforceable right to set off the amounts
and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Impairment
Non-derivative financial assets

The Company recognises loss allowances for ECLs on financial assets measured at amortised cost. The
Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to 12-month ECLSs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating ECLS, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that
is relevant and available without undue cost or effort This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information and analysis, based on the Company's historical experience and informed credit assessment
including forward looking information.

12-month ECLS are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date (or shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less than 2 months).

Credif impaired financial assels

At each repotting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are credit-
impaired. A financial asset is credit-impaired when onc or more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Write off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company has no reasonable
expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof.

Non-derivative financial assels

Financial assets not classified as at FVTPL are assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment.

2.13 Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with custorners is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable for goods sold and services provided in the normal course of business, net of value-added tax and
discounts, where applicable. Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the Group and these can be measured reliably.

The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised:

The Group is in the business of selling, providing maintenance and installation of photovoltaic panels and
water softening and purifying systems, and related ancillary products, Revenue from contracts with customers
is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

The disclosures of significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions relating to revenue from
contracts with customers are provided in Note 4.
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Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when control of the asset is transferred to the
customer, which generally coincides with the date of the invoice. In case of commercial sales, the Group
considers whether there are other premises in the contract that are separate performance obligations to which
a portion of the transaction price needs to be allocated.

Warranty obligations

The Group typically provides warranties for general repairs of defects that existed at the time of sale, as
required by law. These assurance-type warranties are accounted for under IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets.

Contract balances

Contract assels

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If
the Group performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration
or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional.

Trade receivables
A receivable represents the Group’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the
passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due).

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the ebligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays
consideration before the Group transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised
when the payment is made, or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised
as revenue when the Group performs under the contract,

Provision of services

Revenue from the provision of services is recognised in the year in which the services are rendered, by
reference to the completion of the specific transaction assessed based on the actual service provided as a
proportion of the total services to be provided.

Interest and investment income
Interest income is accounted for when it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction
will flow to the Group and these can be measured reliably.

Dividend incone
Dividend income is recognised on the date the Group’s right to receive income is established.

2.14 Taxation

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in profit or
loss except to the extent that the tax arises from a transaction or event which is recognised directly in
equity, in which case it is recognised in equity.

Current tax is based on the taxable profit for the period as determined in accordance with tax laws, and
measured using tax rates, which have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised in tespect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when
they reverse, based on the aws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable
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entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis
or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

A deferred tax asset is recognised for unused tax losses, tax credits and deductible temporary differences,
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be
utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that the related tax benelit will be realised.

2,15 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs which are incurred for the purpose of acquiring or constructing qualifying property, plant
and equipment or investment property, are capitalised as part of its cost. Borrowing costs are capitalised
while acquisition or construction is actively underway, during the period of time that is required to
complete and prepare the asset for its intended use. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is ceased once the
asset is substantially complete and is suspended if the development of the asset is suspended. All other
borrowing costs are expensed.

3. Judgements in applying accounting pelicies and key sources of estimation uncertainty
In preparing the financial statements, the directors are required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect reported income, expenses, assets, liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities. Use of available information and application of judgement are inherent in the formaticn of
estimates. Actual results in the future could differ from such estimates and the differences may be material
1o the financial statements, these estimates are reviewed on a regular basis and if a change is needed, it is
accounted in the period the changes become known.

In the opinion of the management, except for the above, the accounting estimates, assumptions and
judgements made in the course of preparing these financial statements are not difficult, subjective or
complex to a degree which would warrant their description as significant in terms of the requirements of
IAS 1 (revised) — ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’.

4. Revenue
The Group The Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
€ € € €
Revenue from sale of equipment 508,887 1,191,662 508,887 1,191,662
Revenue from feed-in-tariffs 171,170 - 171,170 -
Total revenue 680,057 1,191,662 680,057 1,191,662

Contract balances

As at 30 June 2019, the Group had a balance of €1,836,438 (2018: €846,439), in relation to commercial
contracts. The commercial contracts generated during financial year ended 30 June 2019 are being
accounted for over a five-year term. This balance is unsecured and bears interest at 8%.

Performance obligations

Sale of goods

The petformance obligation is satisfied upon transfer of the risks and rewards of ownership which

generally coincides with the date of the invoice. In the case of the commercial client, payment is estimated
to be collected over a five-year term,
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5. Profit before tax

The profit before tax has been arrived at after deducting the following expenses:

The Group The Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
€ € € €
Depreciation and amortisation 103,962 14,803 95,905 14,803
Auditors' remuneration 5,128 2,400 3,628 2,400
Directors' salaries (Note 6) 77,629 10,734 62,629 10,734

Aunditor’s fee
Fees charged by the auditor for services rendered during the financial years ended 30 June 2019 and 2018
relate to the following:

The Group The Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
¢ € € €
Annual statutory audit fee 5,128 2,400 3,628 2,400
Finance cost
The Group The Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
€ € € €
Interest on loan from subsidiary - - 91,880 -
Interest on bond borrowings 87,504
Interest on bank loan 53,099 47,033 53,099 47,033
140,603 47,033 144,979 47,033
6. Staff costs and employee information
Staff costs for the year comprised the following:
The Group The Company

2019 2018 2019 2018

€ € € €

Directors' remuneration 77,629 10,734 62,629 10,734

Wages and salaries 183,481 173,537 183,481 173,537

Social security contributions 74,657 53,347 74,657 53,347

335,767 237,618 320,767 237,618
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The average number of persons (including directors) employed by the company during the year was as
follows:

The Group
2019 2018
€ €
Operational 5 4
Administration 6 3
11 7

T Income tax

71 Income tax recognised in statement of comprehensive income
The Group The Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
€ € € €
Current tax - 1,718 - 1,718
Deferred tax (151,088) - (156,291) -
Tax charge/(credit) (151,088) 1,718 (156,291) 1,718
7.2 Tax reconciliation

The tax on the company’s results before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the
statutory tax rate of 35%, as follows:

The Group The Company

2019 2018 2019 2018

€ € € €

{Loss)/Profit for the year before taxation (277,274) 154,447 (283,837) 154,447
Adjustment for depreciation and

amortisation 103,962 14,803 95,905 14,803

(173,312) 169,250 (187,932) 169,250

Tax charge/ (credit) at the statutory tax rate (60,659) 59,238 (65,776) 59,238

Tax effect of:
Unabsorbed capital allowances (49,523) (57,519) (49,523) (57,519)
Unabsorbed trading losses (40,826) - (40,991) -

Tax charge/(credit) (151,008) 1,718 (156,290) 1,718
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8. Property, plant and equipment
The Group
Motor Furniture & Other Computer
PV farms Vehicles Fittings Equipment Equipment Total
€ € € € € €
As at 01 July 2018
Cost - 41,800 14,001 23,012 10,971 89,784
Depreciation charge - (19,507 (2,822) (5,335) (6,399 (34,063)
Closing net book value - 22,293 11,179 17,677 4,572 55,721
As at 30 June 2019
NBV - 22,293 11,179 17,677 4,572 55,721
Additions 2,196,900 12,414 1,774 7,409 10,970 2,229,467
Disposal - - - - - -
Depreciation charge (75,966) (10,636) (1,400) (3,042) (4,861) (95,905)
Depreciation release on
disposal - - - - - -
Closing nel book value 2,120,934 24,071 11,553 22,044 10,681 2,189,283
As at 30 June 2019
Cost 2,196,900 54,214 15,775 30,421 21,941 2,319,251
Accumulated
Depreciation (75,966) (30,143) (4,222) (8,371 (11,260) (129,968)
Closing net book value 2,120,934 24,071 11,553 22,044 10,681 2,189,283
9. Investment in subsidiary
The Company
The Company
2018
€

At 1 July 2018
Cost and carrying net book amount

At 30 June 2019
Cost and carrying net book amount
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10.

The subsidiary as at 30 June 2019 is shown below:

Luxury Living Finance p.l.c.

The share capital and reserves of the subsidiary at reporting date stood as follows:

Ordinary shares
Retained earnings

Trade and other receivables

Current

Trade debtors

Other receivables
Indirect taxation
Deferred cost
Prepayments

Related party balances
Shareholders’ advances

Non Current

Trade debtors
Deferred cost

Page 23
Registered Office % of 2019
. shares
Greentek Business Complex held €
Triq il-Hofor 100% 50,000
Qormi

50,000

2019 2018

€ €

50,000 -

9,663 -

59,663 -

The Group The Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
€ € € €
805,940 268,487 826,660 268,487
18,435 201,707 18,435 201,707
19,239 - 19,239 -
236,333 - 236,333 -
663,455 623,770 663,455 623,770
54,399 20,292 54,399 20,292
1,381 40,236 1,381 40,236
1,799,182 1,154,492 1,819,902 1,154,492
The Group The Company

2019 2018 2019 2018
€ € € €
1,462,550 677,151 1,462,550 677,151
660,638 - 660,638 -
2,123,188 677,151 2,123,188 677,151
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11.  Share capital

The Group The Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
€ € € €

Authorised
2,931,000 Ordinary Shares of € 1 each 2,931,000 2,931,000 2,931,000 2,931,000

Issued and Fully paid up
2,931,000 Ordinary Shares of € 1 each 2,931,000 2,931,000 2,931,000 2,931,000

12.  Retained Earnings

This represents accumulated profits. During the period under review, no dividends were paid out of
retained earnings.

13. Borrowings

The Group The Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
€ € € €
Non current
Related party loans 7,918,521 - 7,918,521 -
Bank loans 889,818 1,132,989 1,024,529 1,132,989

8,808,339 1,132,989 8,943,050 1,132,989

Current

Bank overdrafts 387,520 495,694 387,520 495,694

Bank loans 136,872 231,024 - 231,024
524,392 726,718 387,520 726,718

Total 9,332,731 1,859,707 9,330,570 1,859,707

The bank overdrafts bear interest rate of 2.25% over the bank base rate per annum and is repayable on
demand. The Group enjoys an overdraft facility amounting to €500,000. These facilities are secured by
general hypothec over the Group's assets, general and special hypothecary guarantee over property owned
by the related companies, pledges in insurance policies in the name of the related companies. The bank
loans bear interest of 2.5% over the bank base rate and 2% over the bank base rate per annum and are
secured by a general hypothec over the Company's assels, special hypothec over the affiliate's assets,
guarantees given by the parent and group companies and by pledge over the affiliate's insurance policies
in the name of the Company covering properties. One of the loans is repayable by 2026 and the other is
repayable by 2031,

Non-current portion of loan due to subsidiary is unsecured, carries interest at 5.25% per annum and is
repayable in full by not later than 30 June 2028,
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14, Trade and other payable

The Group
2019 2018
€ €
Trade payables 178,843 288,187
Shareholders loans - 50,329
Accruals 1,141,886 192,446
Related party balances 36,072 -
Deferred income 1,173,813 -
Indirect taxation - 1,637

Page 25
The Company
2019 2018
€ €

178,843 288,187

- 50,329

769,199 192,446
36,072 -
1,173,813 -
- 1,637

2,530,614 532,599

2,157,927 532,599

15.  Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, the cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year comprise

the following:

The Group
2019 2018
€ €
Cash at bank 3,163,772 25,205
Bank overdraft (387,520) (495,694)

The Company
2019 2018
€ €
2,703,338 25,205

(387,520)  (495,694)

2,776,252 (470,489)

2,315,818 (470,489)

16. Related party transactions

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the party in making financial or operational decisions.

The Company is ultimately owned by Jean Paul Busuttil and therefore all other companies up to the
ultimate beneficial owner, as well as other companies outside the Group which are owned by Jean Paul

Busuttil are considered to be related parties.

Trading transactions between the companies include items which are normally encountered in a group

context.

Luxury Living Technologies Limited is the parcnt company of the entity listed in Note 7.
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17.

18.

Transactions with related parties

2019 2018
€ €

Expenditure
Management fee charged to parent 45,000 -
Interest payable on loan due to subsidiary 379,346 -
Rent payable to related parties 70,000
Loans and Advances
Advances/repayments from shareholder 1,381 40,236
Advances to subsidiary 360,433 .
Advances/repayments from related parties
Movement in loan due to subsidiary 7,018,521 -

Loan due to subsidiary is unsecured, carries interest at 5.25% per annum and is repayable in full by 30
June 2028.

Year end balances from related party transactions are disclosed in Notes 8, 11 and 14,

Key management personncl compensation consisting of directors’ remuneration has been disclosed in
note 6.

Contingent linbilities

As at 30 June 2019, the Company had a guarantee in favour of Luxury Finance p.l.c. in relation to the
issue of €8,000,000 5% Secured Bonds 2028.

Financial risk management

At the period end, the Company’s main financial assets comprised investment in subsidiary, trade and
other receivables and cash held at bank. At the period end the Company’s main financial liabilities
consisted of borrowings from group companies and trade and other payables.

The Company’s principal risk exposures related to credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company is not
exposed to currency risk and the directors consider interest rate risk exposure to be minimal due to fixed
interest rates stipulated on interest bearing liabilities. Notes 11 incorporate interest rates and maturity
information with respect to the Commpany’s main interest-bearing liabilities.

Timing of Cash Flows

The presentation of the above-mentioned financial assels and liabilities listed above under the current and
non-current headings within the statement of financial position is intended to indicate the timing in which
cash flows will arse.

Credit Risk
Financial assets which potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist trade and
other receivables and cash at bank (Notes 8 and 13).

The Company’s cash at bank is placed with high qualify financial statements,

The Company’s receivables consist mainly of trade and other receivables. Customer credit risk is managed
by the Group’s management subject to the Group’s established policy procedures and control relating to
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customer credit risk management. Credit quality of a customer is assessed based on each customer’s credit
limits. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored. An impairment analysis is performed
at the reporting date on an individual basis. The Group exercises a prudent credit control policy. During
FY2019 the Company entered into commercial contracts with clients totalling €0.9 million. Given that
this revenue will be receivable directly through the feed-in-tariffs generated by the installed photovoltaic
panels, the credit risk in this respect is limited.

Liquidity Risk

The Company is exposed to liquidity risk in relation to meeting future obligations associated with its
financial liabilities, which comprise principally of trade and other payables and borrowings (refer fo Notes
13 and 14). Prudent liquidity risk management includes maintaining sufficient cash and committed credit
lines to ensure the availability of an adequate amount of funding to meet the Company’s obligations.

Management monitors liquidity risk by means of cash flows forecasts on the basis of expected cash flows
over a twelve-month period to ensure that no additional financing facilities are expected to be required
over the coming year.

Capital Management
The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a healthy capital
ratio to support its business and maximise shareholder value,

The Company manages its capital structure and adjusts it, in light of economic conditions. To maintain ar
adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payments to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during
the period ended 30 June 2019.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

At 30 June 2018 and 30 June 2019, the carrying amount of receivables and payables are assumed to
approximate their fair values. The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by
discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate that is available to the
Company for similar financial instruments. As at end of the reporting period, the fair values of financial
assets and liabilities, approximate the carrying amounts shown in the statement of financial position.

Events after the reporting date

As at reporting date, there are no significant transactions that occurred that needs to be disclosed as at 30
June 2019.







